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TREASURER'S REPORT
A ERE

| have pleasure in presenting the financial report of
Lingnan University for the year ended 30 June 2020:

Overview

The financial year under review was the first year of
the 2019-2022 funding triennium of the University
Grants Committee (“UGC”). The University has
signed the University Accountability Agreement
(“UAA”) for the triennium with the UGC, which sets
out the key performance indicators of the University
over the funding period for the UGC to assess the
performance of the University. The 2019/20 year
was also the first year of the University’s 2019-25
strategic plan. The University’s strategic goal in
achieving excellence in undergraduate education has
been affirmed both internationally and locally as the
Times Higher Education University Impact Rankings
2020 has ranked Lingnan University the second
worldwide in the provision of quality education. In
addition, the University received the highest score
evaluated by students among the eight UGC-funded
universities regarding “undergraduate satisfaction
with the quality and value which they have gained
from their teaching and learning experience” in
2018 and 2019. On the financial side, the University
has rolled out the one-line budget model to all
departments/offices in 2019/20 to offer them higher
flexibility in managing their financial resources for
accomplishing the strategic goals.

Overall Operating Results and Financial
Position

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the University
recorded a total income of $1,236.1 million (2018/19:
$936.3 million), an increase of $299.8 million or
32%, mainly caused by an increase in Donations
and Benefactions of $178.3 million and an increase
in Government Subventions of $146.6 million, which
was the result of the introduction of the Eighth
Matching Grant Scheme and the First Research
Matching Grant Scheme in July and August 2019
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respectively. The increase in income was partly
offset by a drop in Interest and Investment Income
of $35.7 million or 66% and a reduction in Auxiliary
Services of $6.5 million or 18%.

On the expenditure side, the University recorded an
increase of $43.6 million or 5% (2019/20: $975.9
million; 2018/19: $932.3 million).

As at 30 June 2020, the net assets of the University
stood at $1,810.3 million (2018/19: $1,549.9 million).

INCOME ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON OF INCOME DISTRIBUTIONS

BETWEEN 2019/2020 AND 2018/2019
2019/202052018/2019F E U A D LLERE

o

g
700 S
650 — Income YA
600 - B 2019/2020 $1,236.1million (12.3611&7%)
550 = 0 2018/2019 $936.3million (9.363(&7T)

$ Million BT

™ ®
© To)
e /
Government Fees Donations Auxiliary Investment Other Income
Subventions B S SE Services Income Hitk A

BB &= ERBNARTS BREWA

EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS
ST
$975.9million (9.759{&7T)

Instruction and Research
BRI

Premises and Related Expenses

& KAz

0 Student and General Education
11.0%  Services

B4 R —REERY
Management and General
EER—ARRE

5.7% Other Academic Services
Hth S MiARES

5.2% Central Computing Facilities
FPRERER

3.8% Library
EESS

0.3% Other Activities
HAhiES)

2019/20 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT o B#53RE 3



COMPARISON OF EXPENDITURE DISTRIBUTIONS
BETWEEN 2019/2020 AND 2018/2019
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Results by Segments

The University business can be broadly divided
into two segments, namely UGC-Funded Activities
and Non-UGC-Funded Activities, and their financial
results for 2019/20 are highlighted as follows:

UGC-Funded Activities

The income derived from and expenditure spent
on UGC-Funded Activities were $813.3 million
(2018/19: $641.0 million) and $715.6 million
(2018/19: $685.3 million) respectively, accounting
for 66% (2018/19: 68%) of the total income and
73% (2018/19: 74%) of the total expenditure of the
University. The increase of $172.3 million income
was mainly attributable to the Eight Matching
Grant Scheme and the First Research Matching
Grant Scheme, which together accounted for an
increase of $132.4 million. The rest was due to the
supplementary grant in respect of the pay-trend
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adjustment of the civil service, the transfer of $10.0
million investment income from the non-UGC funded
segment, and higher level of earmarked grant for
capital projects. The increase in expenditure was
mainly attributable to higher staff cost resulting from
the pay-trend adjustment and merit increments,
and higher premises related expenses. The net
increase in expenditure over that of last year was
$30.3 million.

Capital and Alterations, Additions & Improvements
(“AA&I”) Projects

During the year, the UGC approved three new AA&I
projects with a total value of $87.8 million (2018/19:
$59.0 million) for various campus improvement
works. Total expenditure on the Capital and AA&I
Projects during the year was $50.6 million (2018/19:
$36.5 million) with all projects spending within their
respective budgets.

Non-UGC-Funded Activities

Lingnan Institute of Further Education (“LIFE”)

In 2019/20, the LIFE’s associate degree
programmes had 229 (2018/19: 201) students while
its postgraduate diploma, degree, higher diploma,
diploma and diploma Yi Jin programmes had a
total of 1,172 (2018/19: 1,166) students. Higher
Diploma in Early Childhood Education continued to
be a popular programme with a student intake of
197 (2018/19: 225). The Higher Diploma in Sports
Coaching and Leadership also remained popular
with a student intake of 117 (2018/19: 118).

LIFE recorded a surplus of $7.3 million for the
year (2018/19: $7.3 million). The total income
and expenditure of LIFE were $83.4 million
(2018/19: $85.1 million) and $76.2million (2018/19:
$77.9million) respectively, accounting for 7% of the
total income and 8% of the total expenditure of the
University.

Self-financed Programmes

This sub-segment encompasses all the taught
postgraduate programmes and self financed
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undergraduate programmes of the University,
which had a total of 714 (2018/19: 727) full-time-
equivalent students. During the year, the University
introduced three new programmes, namely Master
of Social Sciences in Organizational Psychology
and Education Management, Master of Social
Sciences in Health & Social Services Management
and Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Animation and
Digital Arts. The Master of Science in International
Banking and Finance programme continued to be
the most popular programme with a student intake
of 77 (2018/19: 80). The Master of Science in
Human Resource Management and Organizational
Behaviour is the second most popular programme
with an intake of 72 (2018/19: 61). The income
generated by this sub-segment was $111.9 million
(2018/19: $105.9 million) and the expenditure
incurred was $86.5 million (2018/19: $77.2 million),
accounting for 9% of the total income and 9% of the
total expenditure of the University. This sub-segment
recorded a surplus of $25.5 million (2018/19: $28.6
million) for the year.

Donations

Total income for the year recorded under this
sub-segment was $185.7 million (2018/19: $43.9
million) while the amount utilized during the year
for supporting various activities was $54.3 million
(2018/19: $48.0 million). This sub-segment recorded
a surplus of $131.3 million (2018/19: $4.1 million
deficit) for the year. The University is very grateful to
all the donors, which included alumni, friends and
various organizations for their continued generous
financial support.

Other Activities

This sub-segment mainly consists of the student
hostel, investment activities of the non-UGC
funds and other ancillary services. In 2019/20,
the investment market has slowed down steadily,
leading to a small drop of investment income from
$24.9 million in 2018/19 to $21.8 million in 2019/20,
a decline of 12%. During the year, the University
appointed an investment consultant to review the
performance of the appointed investment managers
and the investment strategy of the University. After
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the review, the entire portfolio managed by the
manager with substantial underperformance was
liquidated. As at 30 June 2020, the aggregate market
value of the portfolios managed by investment
managers was $743.3 million (2018/19: $724.4
million), of which 48% was cash, representing an
annual return of 2.7% (2018/19: 3.2%). The market
value of the portfolio managed by the University
on that date was $148.7 million (2018/19: $163.7
million ), a negative return of 9.4% (2018/19: 9.1%)
while the Hang Seng Index recorded a loss of 14.4%
in the same year.

Outlook

Despite the huge challenges brought by the social
unrestand COVID-19, the University has successfully
recruited over 800 taught postgraduate students in
2020, making a step closer to its strategic goal of
1,000.

In order to meet the growing demand of the society
in Hong Kong’s dynamic environment and to make
the programmes of the University become the
preferred choices of students, the University has
introduced a self-financed programme in Business
Psychology under the Bachelor of Social Sciences
(Honours) programmes in 2020.

To increase the visibility of the University in town,
the University has planned to set up an education
centre in the Kowloon area to run part-time taught
postgraduate and professional development
programmes to better serve the local community.

The University is financially sound for pursuing its
strategic goals in teaching and research. Moreover,
the University will closely monitor the sector-wide
and institution-specific key performance indicators
as set out in the UAA to ensure the meeting of its
academic targets as well as its financial sustainability
in the long term.

Katherine Cheung Marn-kay

Treasurer
Hong Kong, 12 October 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE COUNCIL OF LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

(established under the Lingnan University Ordinance)

B B ERABEREDRE

(#R 1% 58 P K 2145 PR 51 )

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lingnan
University (the “University”) set out on pages 13
to 96, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement
of income and expenditure, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in fund balances and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the
University as at 30 June 2020, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Lingnan University Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the University
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other information included in the
Financial Report

The Council of the University is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Financial Report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council of the
University for the financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Lingnan University
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Council of the University either intends
to liquidate the University or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Council of the University is assisted by the
Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities
for overseeing the University’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 20
of the Lingnan University Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council of the University.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the
Council’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the University’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the University to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12 October 2020
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

W BT 2020E6 B30 £ E

Income
Government Subventions
Tuition, Programmes and

Other Fees
Interest and Investment Income
Donations and Benefactions
Auxiliary Services

Other Income

Expenditure

Learning and Research
Instruction and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Education

Services

Other Activities

Surplus for the Year

A
BT e &
BE REXK
HAtg &
FERBREWA
AR R BEHE
BN AR 75
HAUA

X
Bl R 5T
HBRHFE
(BE
FR IR E A% fil
H 22y AR TS
HiE<E
EER MR
K& AR H
BER—RHE
BR#5
HtEE

TFERR

11

2020 2019

HKS &7t HKS$ &t
(Note HMi&t4) (Note FfiEE4)
(As restated B Ei#ml)

648,944,397 502,313,497
328,716,341 312,220,888
18,512,998 54,235,826
204,312,195 26,003,324
29,300,330 35,770,121
6,265,072 5,779,680
1,236,051,333 936,323,336
466,265,074 437,216,610
37,171,842 38,979,609
51,174,807 52,019,395
55,458,855 55,607,408
98,363,816 93,488,761
156,565,883 138,838,828
107,754,044 113,595,223
3,188,448 2,583,863
975,942,769 932,329,697
260,108,564 3,993,639
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

AEWEHFEE T 202065308 EE

Notes 2020 2019
B £ HK$ &7t HK$ &7t
Restricted Funds Surplus/(Deficit) S RREIE £ B ER/(B5) 72,326,962 (19,215,835)
Other Funds Surplus HittE 2 ®Es 187,781,602 23,209,474
Surplus for the Year TEERR 260,108,564 3,993,639
Other Comprehensive Income TR TS ER
which will not be reclassified to Al R HE M
the Statement of Income and Wiz
Expenditure in Subsequent Periods
Changes in Fair Value of Equity SFAZEWRRZES 12 313,776 607,131
Investments Designated at Fair Value BRENAREE
through Other Comprehensive Income #Eh
Other Comprehensive Income FEEHMZEEE
for the year 313,776 607,131
Total Comprehensive Income FEEHEZERE
for the Year 260,422,340 4,600,770
Transfers to/(from): BigE/(8):
Restricted Funds SEREIEE 12 72,640,738 (18,608,704)
Other Funds HitbE& 13 187,781,602 23,209,474
260,422,340 4,600,770




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

BrFSIROR TR 2020863 30H

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Right-of-use Assets

Equity Investments Designated at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive
Income

Prepayments

Current Assets

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments
and Deposits

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but
less than One Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accruals

Provision for Employee Benefits

Loan Repayable within One Year
- Secured

Deferred Income

Lease Liabilities within One Year

Net Current Assets

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Provision for Employee Benefits

Loan Repayable after One Year

- Secured

Lease Liabilities More than One Year

Deferred Capital Fund

Net Assets

ERBEE
RE ~ iR
EREEE

FEERLASEEETA
EEBRRZERIRE

TRfY AR

REBEE

DlAsfBEET A %=

NEMEE
FEURARTR ~ TRATRRTX
RiEE
FEHER®=EA
BREiR—FaEH
T
RERBEFEY

mENEE
FEMBRF R TEIR B H
(R b
—FREETEN

- iR
EFEUTA
—FRIEERE

FRBEE

HWEERREBAR

IERERMR

B EmEH #iE

—FREETEN

- iR

RU—FHEERE

BEEFEE

FEE

Notes

14
15
16

17

16

17

18 (a)

18 (b)

19
20
21

22
15

20
21

15

23

2020
HKS$ &t

1,185,864,495
664,620
6,865,845

1,229,087

2019
HK$ T

1,189,065,737

6,552,069

2,486,375

1,194,624,047

1,198,104,181

447,335,752

23,525,108

1,020,031,677

388,252,165

854,268,144

19,595,159

641,524,412

72,077,041

1,879,144,702

1,587,464,756

168,588,990 154,484,625
57,173,575 63,535,464
- 6,857,834
186,975,732 162,215,509
317,589 -
413,055,886 387,093,432

1,466,088,816

1,200,371,324

2,660,712,863

2,398,475,505

10,937,762 10,060,714
27,431,326 27,431,326
348,492 -
38,717,580 37,492,040
811,669,940 811,080,462

1,810,325,343

1,549,903,003
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

(Continued)
B E5iRna 202046

A30H (#&)

Operational Funds
Restricted Funds
UGC Funds

Other Reserves

Total Funds

Andrew Yao Cho-fai, JP WkiB1E
Chairman of the Council KEZXE

Leonard Cheng Kwok-hon, JP EBElE
President #&

Notes 2020 2019
MiEE HKS$ &7t HK$ &t

EEES
SIRAIEE 12 582,233,704 391,529,543
HESESR 13 367,529,996 384,794,390
H1ithfEm 13 860,561,643 773,579,070
HES 1,810,325,343 1,549,903,003

Katherine Cheung Marn-kay Z 21
Treasurer FlE

lan Woo Chun-tung #RHRER
Comptroller ###5&



LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

HERERET202006 8300 FE

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus for the Year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, Plant and
Equipment
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets
Transfer to/(from) Deferred Capital Fund
Interest and Investment Income
Interest Expense in respect of Loan
Interest Expense in respect of Lease
Liabilities
Loss on Disposal of ltems of
Property, Plant and Equipment

Increase in Accounts Receivable,
Prepayments and Deposits

(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for
Employee Benefits

Increase in Accounts Payable
and Accruals

Increase in Deferred Income

Cash Flows generated from Operations

Interest Element of Lease Liabilities

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investments
Purchases of ltems of
Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Disposal of Investments
Proceeds from Disposal of Items of
Property, Plant and Equipment
Increase in Time Deposits
with Original Maturity of more than
Three Months but less than One Year
Interest Received
Dividend Received

EETHNRERE
AEERE
N
K& BEREMZ
e
EREEEZINE
EE(B)ETEEAEE
FERFEWA
BRI S5
HEBRERERTIE
S
BEREHER
M IE BRI

HENNFEUARSR ~
FRfiRM KRR E
(B NN R S raFI iR

HENNAE (T BRFR R
RIZER
EYIETTON
BESLRERE
HERERFE

EEEHRBFHERAR

BREFSHNRASRE
BARE
BERER R REMIEE

HEREERMR

HERZ R B
IR E R

EMEREIHE &
R=ERBREMN—FR
EHATFIR

FIBUA

B B A

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities ¥ZF;FEIRBHREHELHE

Notes

(i

ﬁ_l!:

14

32

14

2020 2019
HKS$ &It HKS$ &7t
260,108,564 3,993,639
73,225,431 68,575,944
321,018 -
589,478  (14,131,560)
(18,512,998)  (54,235,826)
303,006 480,704
4,443 -
10,910,767 11,600
326,949,709 4,694,501
(1,928,084) (4,042,591)
(5,484,841) 3,051,166
14,211,376 2,600,696
24,760,223 53,305,197
358,508,383 59,608,969
(4,443) -
358,503,940 59,608,969
- (63,792,250)
(81,091,756)  (43,196,066)
399,451,282 23,076,350
156,800 188,500
(378,507,265) (3,855,978)
21,925,861 14,550,177
3,323,670 4,610,658
(34,741,408)  (68,418,609)
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (Continued)

HESMEBREZE2020FE6830HEE (8)

Notes 2020 2019
ihEE3 HK$ &t HK$ #&JT
Cash Flows from Financing Activities RIEEENREHEE
Principal Repayment of Loan EEEFHAS 32 (6,857,834) (6,857,834)
Principal Portion of Lease Payment HENTIAIEE 32 (319,557)
Interest Paid FEZA 32 (410,017) (490,139)
Net Cash Outflow from Financing BEEIEIRE (7,587,408) (7,347,973)
Activities MHE
Net Increase/(Decrease) in RERRESLED 316,175,124 (16,157,613)
Cash and Cash Equivalents wm/GRd )35
Cash and Cash Equivalents FHZRE 72,077,041 88,234,654
at the Beginning of the Year REE%ED
Cash and Cash Equivalents FRZRE 18 (b) 388,252,165 72,077,041
at the End of the Year BR&ESEY
Analysis of the Balances of HERREEEY
Cash and Cash Equivalents: FEBROMT ¢
Cash and Bank Balances R & R IRITHEER 18 (b) 9,716,682 6,944,119
Non-pledged Time Deposits with REIEIEREMA=EH/ 18(b) 378,535,483 65,132,922
Original Maturity of less than FEIRIRE BRTF AR
Three Months
388,252,165 72,077,041




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
BB ERE R 20206 530 E£E

Restricted Funds
SERAIEE

HKS$ #&JT
(Note HiE¥12)

405,799,634
(18,608,704)

Balance as at 1.7.2018 1.7.2018 ¥R
Total Comprehensive (Loss)/ AFEEEME

Other Funds
HthEe
HKS$ &t
(Note Fiz¥13)

1,139,502,599
23,209,474

(4,338,613)

Total
st
HKS$ &t

1,545,302,233
4,600,770

1,158,373,460

1,549,903,003

1,158,373,460
187,781,602

(118,063,423)

1,549,903,003
260,422,340

Income for the Year (B518) /U %
Inter-fund Transfer EE&FER 4,338,613
Balance as at 30.6.2019 30.6.2019 f5ER 391,529,543
Balance as at 1.7.2019 1.7.2019 &R 391,529,543
Total Comprehensive AFEREZE 72,640,738
Income for the Year g
Inter-fund Transfer EE£ER 118,063,423
Balance as at 30.6.2020 30.6.2020 #EEF 582,233,704

1,228,091,639

1,810,325,343
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE R AL

1.

2.1

20

General Information

Lingnan University, formerly Lingnan College,
is the only liberal arts university in the territory,
with the longest established tradition among
the local institutions of higher education.
The University was incorporated on 30 July
1999 following the enactment of the Lingnan
University Ordinance. Its history, however,
dates back to 1888, when its forerunner, the
prestigious Lingnan University in Guangzhou,
China, was founded.

Lingnan University is committed to the
provision of quality education distinguished
by the best liberal arts traditions. It adopts
a whole-person approach to education which
enables its students to think, judge, care and,
ultimately, act responsibly in the changing
circumstances of Hong Kong, the region and
the world.

The principal place of operation is Tuen Mun,
Hong Kong.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the accounting policies generally adopted
by higher educational institutions in Hong
Kong as expressed in the Statement of
Recommended Accounting Practice (“SORP”)
for University Grants Committee (“UGC”)
Funded Institutions in Hong Kong.

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except
for equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which have been measured at fair value,
and are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

1. —fREH
EMmAE > BIplsEmE0kt ARt —
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BIEXA B4R - RERI19994F7H308 K
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2.1 4Rl B R
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2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies And

Disclosures

The University has adopted the following new
and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements:

HKFRS 16
Leases

The nature and the impact of the new and
revised HKFRSs are as follows:

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int
15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model to recognize
and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17.
Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17.

The University has adopted HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective method with the
date of initial application of 1 July 2019.
Under this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with right-of-use (“ROU”)
assets equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted
by any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognized in the
statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application, and the
comparative information for 2019 was not
restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17.

2.2 GHEERHEZ B

RERARF 2 MR ERNEREALL
TR BRI BB B E 2R

BBV BREERE 165
HE

AT RIS BB R A 2 1
RERTNT

ERMBRELENE1RIMAETESS
HAEI7THREE BB (BEVER
TRRBEEE) - REFINREER
HESEaEE B8 (BEBEREERE
Z) — REFRLEEN— BEL
BE (BBREBRES) — RESY
SAHES RHEERLARZHIAR -
ZERIGESERR  5TE ~ 2 MIKEM
ENRAI - WERABATE-—EES
EREXFFEMBEHELERATE
EHEEENEEAE (EXLERR
RERSN) - EEBYHREERIB165R
2T HEANREBERERBETES
SHERIZE17SRRIMER - HE AR SR
RBUEBSFHERE1 TR R AR HE
ENMRKEHONBERLY -

REFER BT ERNERNT B BRE
ZERIFE165% - FIRERA BB R201947
A1 - REZIZE > ZENEEEM
ERECHAEEEESENEESE I
REEHXERBHIZEERYH
MR EBNRL B HENI RIS
AR M2019FLEBRENWEES > I
HEREEBGENRI7TRER -
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New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset.
The University elected to use the practical
transition method, under which the standard
will be applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified
as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition
of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 July 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified
as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The University has lease contracts for an
education centre. As a lessee, the University
previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the
assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the University.
Under HKFRS 16, the University applies a
single approach to recognize and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
all leases, except for an elective exemption
for leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class
of underlying assets). Instead of recognizing
rental expenses under operating leases
on a straightline basis over the lease term
commencing from 1 July 2019, the University
recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use
assets and interest accrued on the outstanding
lease liabilities (as finance costs).

HEHESE

REBEEBYHREERNB165 0 f—
BRRTE—HTEETHRAX—FE
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Impact on transition

Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 were
recognized based on the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July
2019. The University elected to present the
lease liabilities separately in the statement
of financial position. The right-of-use assets
were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognized in the statement of financial
position immediately before 1 July 2019.

The right-of-use assets were assessed for
any impairment based on HKAS 36 on that
date. The University elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement
of financial position.

The University has used the following elective
practical expedient when applying HKFRS 16
at 1 July 2019:

- Applying a single discount rate to a
portfolio  of with
characteristics when measuring the lease
liabilities at 1 July 2019.

leases similar

R
X
&
I

R2019F 7R 1B HEABRFSRE
ENFMIRE > FH2019F781HMW
EEREEMNREBETLURR - KEBE
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Financial impact at 1 July 2019:

The impact arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 16 as at 1 July 2019 was as follows:

Assets
Increase in right-of-use assets and total assets
Liabilities

Increase in lease liabilities and total liabilities

The lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 reconciled
to the operating lease commitments as at 30
June 2019 are as follows:

Operating lease commitments as
at 30 June 2019

Discounted at the University’s incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019

Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019

ey

BR2019F7TH 1 HZBI7557 2 -

R2019F 7B 1 BIRME BV IBREHE

BIE16RAVREW T ¢

BE

EREEEREEREEN

=i

HEREBEARREREEM

H20195F7 B1 HZHER AN
#£201956 B30 Bz A & FH#97%
FEHIERANTE -

52201956 A30H
ARG

F20195F7 B1 Big A
2B EGFRITIR

12019F7B1 HZHERE

Increase
)l
HKS$#ETT

348,492

348,492

HK$E&TT

351,000

1.231%

348,492



2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The University has not applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, and
potentially relevant to the University’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material’

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions?

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the University
is described below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide
a new definition of material. The new definition
states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The University expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 July 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on
the University’s financial statements.

23 ERHERENZERAUBTIR

SZ2ER|

T3 AT REEL R B2 B FE R AR B o2 T R] X
RIEETNE BV BREER - S8EM
M AR AE BN AR R B IR

BEREFENB IR LETBS LS
BERIERT A
BERCERE

ERUBREEANFI6RET AR
19 BRRSHEENESEER’

" AR 202041 A1 B LA IR
FEHARS

2 FAR202046 81 B LA RIAIE
FEHARS

BRRMERRKRBEZERBMBRELE
AZE—FTERT :

EEGHERFEIRREBSAENSE
SMBE RN ESR - MEHREH
HiER -« RN ERER - T —
RYBHREZEREAEASEMTAL
HMPPRRERTE > AEEENE
BER - ZFEBEE  BERERAETF
ERMEIREEME - HERRILE
HOTREME NS EMIERH MM
RREKTE ABEKR - KREEH
20206781 B R AIHEE ERME
7] - MR FBII B AGHREZHHE
WEEREMNERTE -

2019/20 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT e Bi#53ReE 25



26

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the cost
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the University
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of a replaced
part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance expenditures are recognized
as expenses in the statement of income and
expenditure during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings, Structures and Fittings :

20 - 50 years

Leasehold Improvements :

7 years or term of lease, whichever is shorter

FEEFER

RE & B RITE

®&E -~ RiskEM (E2LIRER) &%
RAEBNERENELEMRESER

—HRE REABHZRAERE
BANE DUEZEEEEAEHAR
BERIALUER  EAMEENEMN
A

MRS~ RIENBMIABEEFRELE
ZFEX o PIIRBEREESHE  — R
REEL 2 BURRNET AW RER
RFAS o MAELIRE @ ZEXHAE
H—IARE « &R EEERRAT
A FREIAR R EN e BB K >
ZIHB AR A AT E - AIER
LELEXH  FRZREEZBINIA
B HE/R—IREE -

BE -~ R RETN (ERIRRN) 1
e E AR ERAHRITE LI
HAEZHEE - £HFH  BEK
TEREENBEEEBEREFERE
TRHME LR > WEEERFREE

BERFHOT -

BE -~ WENEERE

20E504F

HEEEAR :

TENHEFH  LBEERE



Furniture and Equipment :

3 -5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure on disposal.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Construction-in-progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the
University reviews the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognized no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount
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of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognized as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
as income immediately.

Leases (applicable from 1 July 2019)

The University assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

University as a lessee

The University applies a single recognition
and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases. The University
recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments andright-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognized at
the commencement date of the lease
(that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Education Centre :

2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers
to the University by the end of the lease
term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date of the lease at
the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the
University and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the University exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognized as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the University uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities
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is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets

The University applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of education centre (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

University as a lessor

When the University acts as a lessor, it
classifies at lease inception (or when there is a
lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the University does not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When acontract
contains lease and non-lease components,
the University allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the statement of income and expenditure
due to its operating nature. |Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
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amount of the leased asset and recognized
over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted
for as finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 July 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the
University, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalized at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalized finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to the statement
of income and expenditure so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the University is the lessor, assets
leased by the University under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of income and
expenditure on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the University is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of income and
expenditure on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognized on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost
of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and Other Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
University’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the
University has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the University initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component
or for which the University has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 July
2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding.
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The University’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial

assets, or both.

The business model

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade date,
that is, the date that the University commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Regular way

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt
Instruments)

The University measures financial assets
at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a
business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

amortized cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized
in the statement of income and expenditure
when the asset is derecognized, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at

method and are
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Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income (Equity
Investments)

Upon initial recognition, the University
can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets
are never recycled to the statement of income
and expenditure. Dividends are recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the University and the
amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the University benefits
from such proceeds as arecovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income
are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and
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interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces,
an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of income
and expenditure.

This category includes equity investments
which the University had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the University and the
amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The University derecognizes a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expired.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The University recognizes an allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
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instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the University expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General Approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the University
assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the University compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The University considers a financial asset
in default when contractual payments are
1 year past due. However, in certain cases,
the University may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the University is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any
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credit enhancements held by the University.
A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified Approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or when
the University applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the University applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the University
does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognizes a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The University has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The University’s financial liabilities include
accounts and other payables, the amount due
to UGC and secured loans payable.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
including accounts payables and accruals,
the amount due to UGC and secured loans
payable are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost,
using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of income and expenditure when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the amortization process.
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Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and
demand deposits with bank. Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at bank, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, which will probably
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
University expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

Revenue from the provision of programmes
is recognized over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the University.

Residence Halls Fee

Residence halls fee are recognized when
the services are rendered.
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Block
Supplementary Grants

Grants and Non-accountable

Block grants and non-accountable
supplementarygrantsfromUGC arerecognized
as income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred plus any such other
grants, which are received in excess of the
related expenses incurred, but transferred to
General and Development Reserve Fund in
the reporting period. Subventions received
before the occurrence of the related revenue
and capital expenditure and are in excess of
the transfers to General and Development
Reserve Fund are recognized as Deferred
Income.

Other Subventions

Other subventions, which are earmarked
for specific purposes, are recognized as
income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred in the reporting period.
Subventions received before the occurrence
of the related revenue and capital expenditure
are recognized as Deferred Income.

Subventions Spent on Capital Expenditure

Subventions spent on capital expenditure
are treated as Deferred Capital Fund and
recognized as income over the useful lives of
the related assets when the assets are put into
use, to the extent of the related depreciation
incurred for that period.

Interest Income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis

on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.
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Donations

Donations designated for financing capital
expenditure are treated as Deferred Income
when received; any amount spent on capital
expenditure is transferred to Deferred Capital
Fund and recognized as income over the
useful lives of the related assets when the
assets are put in use, to the extent of the
related depreciation incurred for that period.

Other donations in cash of which the unspent
balance need not be refunded are recognized
as income when received or receivable from
the donors.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive payment has been established.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognized on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a
payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the University transfers the related goods or
delivers the services. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the University
transfers the control of the related goods or
services to the customer.

Employee Benefits

Employee Leave Pay

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognized when they accrue to the
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.
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Mandatory Provident Fund

The University operates a defined contribution
Mandatory  Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for its employees. Contributions
are made based on percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of income and expenditure
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the University in an independently
administered fund. The University’s employer
mandatory contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, while voluntary contributions vest
with them according to the vesting schedule
of the Scheme.

Foreign Currencies

The University determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial
statements of the University are measured
using that functional Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded
using the exchange rates ruling at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. All differences
are taken to the statement of income and
expenditure. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

currency.
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Reserves
Endowment Donations

Endowment Donations represent donations
which are being held intact in perpetuity and
only the interest income therefrom can be
utilized for the general development of the
University and designated purposes.

General and Development Reserve Fund

General and Development Reserve Fund
(“GDRF”) represents unspent funds of UGC
recurrent grants from one funding period
(usually a triennium) to the next. The balance
of GDRF at the end of a funding period which
can be carried over to the next funding period
should not exceed 20% of the University’s
approved recurrent grants for that funding
period. Should the balance of the GDRF at
the end of a funding period exceed the ceiling
allowed for that funding period, the excess
should be transferred to Amount Refundable
of Unspent Recurrent Grants in the account
of Amount Due to UGC pending the recovery
by the UGC.

Operations Reserves
Operations Reserves comprise the funds
generated from the self-financing programmes

and projects of the University.

Deferred Capital Fund

Deferred Capital Fund represents the
Government subventions and campus
development donations spent in the purchase
of property, plant and equipment or capital
projects which are subject to depreciation.
Deferred Capital Fund will be reduced to the
same extent as and when the depreciation
of the related property, plant and equipment
is charged to the statement of income and
expenditure.
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Deferred Income

Funds earmarked for specific purposes,
of which the unspent balance should be
refunded, including Government subventions,
donations and benefactions, and interest and
investment income arising from these funds,
are not recorded as income if the related
expenditure has not yet been incurred during
the year. Funds of such nature received but
not yet recognized in the statement of income
and expenditure are recorded as Deferred
Income.

Capital Management

The various restricted and other funds of
the University represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fees income,
donations, investment income, income
generated from self-financing activities and
other designated funds. These funds are
managed according to the relevant grant
and funding conditions, where applicable,
and the University’s investment and financial
management guidelines and procedures. The
objective is to safeguard the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
optimal reserves to provide tertiary education
and to support the future development of the
University.

The University manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments in accordance with
changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. During the
year ended 30 June 2020, the University’s
overall capital management policy remained
unchanged from prior years.
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5. Government Subventions

EXAFfEBY &

Subventions from UGC
Block Grants
Non-accountable Supplementary Grants
Supplementary Adjustments
Matching Grants
Research Matching Grants

Earmarked Grants

Research

Housing-related Expenses other than
Home Financing Scheme (“HFS”)

Knowledge Transfer

Funding Scheme for Teaching and
Learning Related Proposals

Others

Rates and Government Rent Refunded

Capital Grants and AA&I Block Allocation

Grants from Government Agencies
Rates and Government Rent Refunded
Others
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2020 2019
HK$ &t HK$ T
414,519,693 387,504,525
20,883,000 48,403,000
72,847,430 .
59,570,605 -
567,820,728 435,907,525
4,747,419 7,070,050
1,380,324 1,551,889
1,074,444 1,161,985
1,189,164 1,222,879
386,453 662,720
8,777,804 11,669,523
7,989,240 7,701,000
50,637,798 36,521,729
635,225,570 491,799,777
899,000 903,000
12,819,827 9,610,720
13,718,827 10,513,720
648,944,397 502,313,497




6. Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

28 REREMNE

UGC-Funded Programmes HESERERRE
Tuition Fees 25

Programme and Other Fees REREMNE
Non UGC-Funded Programmes EHESEBRE
Tuition Fees 25

Programme and Other Income REREMTA

Notes:

1. During the year, tuition, programmes and other fees were
recognized when the services were rendered over time,
i.e. the performance obligations were satisfied. Payments
were generally due before the commencement of the
terms/courses. The University’s geographical market was
in Hong Kong.

2. During the year, the amount of tuition, programmes and

other fees recognized, that had been included in contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period, was
HK$55.49 million (2019: HK$50.13 million).

2020 2019
HK$ 7T HK$ &7t
131,674,482 122,756,078
2,251,209 2,329,061
133,925,691 125,085,139
187,310,041 182,827,524
7,480,609 4,308,225
194,790,650 187,135,749
328,716,341 312,220,888

T.ER RERRREHRBNER (ALY RE
WEMR)ZRABBE REMEMER L&
ERBEERH/RERBAIXN - KENE
HHEERE

VR KBHEATE, 5AIBBTHNES 2
REMWKE (2019:5,013BBT)  MELSKE
EsFAFEMMANESE -
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7. Interest and Investment Income

FERBEWA
2020 2019
HKS$ &7t HKS$ &7t
Interest Income FEULA 22,707,882 15,419,516
Dividend Income =NV N 3,335,835 4,773,549
Net Realized and Unrealized (Loss)/ HAREBER ARZ R (7,530,719) 34,042,761
Gain on Financial Assets at Fair HEeBBEEZEREX
Value through Profit or Loss BIRAE (B518)/IN &
18,512,998 54,235,826
8. Donations and Benefactions
B 7k R BEAE
2020 2019
HKS$ &It HK$ &It
Capital Projects E#Z215H 7,862,391 6,023,541
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries BES  BEKEES 13,879,583 6,084,749
Donations for Research Activities (Note) EBNIR TR ED (BYEE) 91,991,724 4181,078
Others (Note) Hith (BTEE) 90,578,497 9,713,956
204,312,195 26,003,324

Note:

During the year, donation received from the Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust was HK$24.98 million
(2019: HK$7.75 million) and from the Jean C K Ho Family
Foundation was HK$0.34 million (2019: HK$0.15 million).
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GEX

AEEESESQRESCEESNIBARR2, 4988
BT (2019: 7758 %) RAGRREESNBI R
S4BT (2019: 158 TT) ©



9. Auxiliary Services

& B A #5

Residence Halls BE
Auditorium AEE

Car Park SHH
Catering Services EERTE
Rental Income HEUWA
Rental Contribution from Staff A EHS
Sports Complex EEHE
Notes:

1. During the year, residence halls income was recognized
when the services were rendered over time, i.e. the
performance obligations were satisfied. Payments were
generally due before the commencement of the terms.
The University’s geographical market was in Hong Kong.

2. During the year, the amount residence halls income
recognized, that had been included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period was HK$2.49 million
(2019: HK$2.17 million).

10. Other Income

HBUA
Contract Research HEME
Survey and Service Income AERRFEWA
Miscellaneous HIFUA

2020 2019
HKS$ &t HK$ &It
27,325,914 32,658,662
- 67,510

524,348 861,835
200,000 600,000
539,788 722,048
572,960 638,136
137,320 221,930
29,300,330 35,770,121

Byat

TLER RERREHRBNGE (BRLTE
WEMR) EERBEIBVA HWERBEETEH
RIS - RENEHTIZREE

2HR RBERBT2A9EBTHNES KA
(2019 : 2178%7T) - MESBEFAFDNAK
BE-

2020 2019
HK$ &t HK$ T
4,677,018 2,138,979
921,376 1,044,700
666,678 2,596,001
6,265,072 5,779,680
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11.  Expenditure
B2

Learning and Research

Instruction and Research

Library

Central Computing
Facilities

Other Academic

Services

Institutional Support
Management and
General
Premises and
Related Expenses
Student and General
Education Services
Other Activities

Bify R 6L

HEBRE

BES:

FRER
i

H At 221l
BR#%

HinxiE
EIER
—ME iR
RER
MERAs H
B4 R—i
HERS
HAtiEE)

Total Expenditure 2019/2020

2019/2020 F E#EsT H

Total Expenditure 2018/2019

2018/2019F E#Bz H

52

Staff Costs Operating
and Benefits Expenses 2020 2019
ESL ] %3 Depreciation Total Total
FrfnE X e #ast a5t
HK$ &t HK$ &t HK$ &t HKS$ #Eit HK$ &
(As restated
EFimH)
416,126,681 47,331,886 2,806,507 466,265,074 437,216,610
18,884,556 17,885,830 401,456 37,171,842 38,979,609
29,665,774 15,009,776 6,499,257 51,174,807 52,019,395
46,846,426 8,454,918 157,511 55,458,855 55,607,408
511,523,437 88,682,410 9,864,731 610,070,578 583,823,022
79,116,873 19,171,322 75,621 98,363,816 93,488,761
10,525,550 84,006,378 62,033,955 156,565,883 138,838,828
35,306,517 71,847,458 600,069 107,754,044 113,595,223
1,090,872 1,446,521 651,055 3,188,448 2,583,863
126,039,812 176,471,679 63,360,700 365,872,191 348,506,675
(Note Fffz¥11.1)
637,563,249 265,154,089 73,225,431 975,942,769
(Note ff5¥11.2)
601,818,119 261,935,634 68,575,944

(Note [ffz¥11.2)

932,329,697



1.1 Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses
BB IREER LA

Management and General
Auditor’s Remuneration
Furniture and Equipment
Insurance - General
Legal and Professional Fees
Office and Publicity Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Staff Recruitment
Staff Development and Training

Interest Expense in respect of Loan

Premises and Related Expenses
Furniture and Equipment
Government Rent and Rates
Insurance - Property
Minor Works
Legal and Professional Fees
Office Expenses
Premises and Facility Rental
Repairs and Maintenance
Utilities, Cleaning, Communication,

Security and Management
Services
Net Loss on Disposal of Property,
Plant & Equipment
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets
Interest Expense in respect of
Lease Liabilities

ERR—WZE

R BEMEN =

HE KM

— % fRbg
FRRBERBER
WMARREERH
HIERRE

BT 1888

BT
EMeERAF B3z H

REREMZH
EE KM
B A8 R 2= 8
HERR
INERT AR
FERBERBER
WMAETH
BEREHE
HIERGFRE
NRRTE - FER
BEf ~ R REE
BR7%
RER SBR[
JRH FR51E
EREEEZE
HEBRERERT S
X

2020 2019

HKS$ 7T HKS &t
(As restated EFf#RmH])

570,000 649,000
234,300 364,314
1,324,205 1,232,304
1,063,300 922,461
11,920,253 13,744,171
1,512,284 219,571
1,960,054 860,938
283,920 408,760
303,006 480,704
19,171,322 18,882,223
1,541,317 2,185,342
8,888,240 8,604,000
1,216,726 243,323
2,330,282 5,981,453
519,147 322,034
214,065 289,842
825,556 1,635,477
15,900,562 14,288,777
41,334,255 37,355,353
10,910,767 11,600
321,018 -
4,443 -
84,006,378 70,917,201
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1.1 Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses (continued)

WIBIREEH A (1)

Student and General Education Services

Ceremonies, Assembly and Promotions

Careers and Counselling Services

Furniture and Equipment

Student Exchange

Office Expenses

Residence Hall Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance

Student Activities, Study Tour and
Grants to Student Societies

Sports Facilities

Scholarship and Financial Aid

Staff Development and Training

Student Medical and Dental Scheme

Other Activities
Auditorium Operations
Catering Services
Survey and Service
Transportation Service

BAER—BBERH
S - EERIHEE
MR R EARTS
RE K25t
BEZR
WMAETH
BEXH
HIERRE
BaEE)  BEEK

EppRE gt

B Xt
BRERHER
BT
BERERR I FHRERE

HithiE®
REELE
BEARTE
RE RS
BT

1.2 Analysis of Staff Costs and Benefits

F 8 FEnE R 2 A

Salaries and Wages
Gratuities

MPF Contributions
Other Benefits

5y

FeRI&
HimN &
g
HtigF!

2020 2019

HK$ &t HK$ &7t
(As restated E iR

2,075,904 2,970,247
422,997 381,573
114,093 117,943
4,682,031 6,033,973
1,462,468 2,490,277
32,101,851 31,746,281
1,562,950 955,699
4,208,080 10,494,659
901,457 1,105,203
22,735,124 20,751,622
18,227 10,950
1,562,276 1,535,560
71,847,458 78,593,987
26,000 -
1,099,961 532,131
247,725 184,821
72,835 77131
1,446,521 794,083
176,471,679 169,187,494
2020 2019

HK$ &7t HKS$ &It
545,679,016 514,362,654
40,477,914 38,538,172
24,440,474 22,424,090
26,965,845 26,493,203
637,563,249 601,818,119




12. Restricted Funds
ZREIEE

Balance as at 1.7.2018 #58%

Transfer from/(to) Statement of
Comprehensive Income

HE(E)2HENmR

Inter-fund Transfer

BEEK

Balance as at 30.6.2019 #5%

Balance as at 1.7.2019 #58%

Transfer from Statement of

Comprehensive Income

EE2EIRE

Inter-fund Transfer
EE£FR

Balance as at 30.6.2020 #5853

Investment Designated Funds
Revaluation ETHEES

Endowment Reserve Donations/ Endowment
Donations BE Funds Funds Total
BRI B &R B/EE BXESE fEst
HK$ #it HKS$ AT HKS$ &t HKS$ &t HKS &t
106,994,621 5,944,438 263,932,817 28,927,758 405,799,634
914,000 607,131 (20,129,835) - (18,608,704)
- - 4,338,613 - 4,338,613
107,908,621 6,551,569 248,141,595 28,927,758 391,529,543
107,908,621 6,551,569 248,141,595 28,927,758 391,529,543
26,300,000 313,776 46,026,962 - 72,640,738
(1,775,682) - 114,839,105 5,000,000 118,063,423
132,432,939 6,865,345 409,007,662 33,927,758 582,233,704
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13. Other Funds

HttEE
UGC Funds Other Reserves
HEEESE HithfE i
Unallocated
Research
General and  Unallocated Matching Non-Designated
Development Matching Grants Operations Donations and
Reserve Fund Grants XRABCAE Reserves Benefactions
—MRER KRABLAE HEECE =—$t 3H‘a‘7ﬂﬁﬁi_ Total
fFEiEEE DEWEEE I fEfE BRR st
HK$ &7t HK$ #t  HKS$ &t HK$ &7t HK$ ,%:rc HK$ &7t
Balance as at 1.7.2018 252,129,949 175,291,551 - 544,926,000 167,155,099 1,139,502,599
HEER
Transfer from/(to) (38,996,010) - - 57,946,103 4,259,381 23,209,474
Statement of
Comprehensive
Income
EH/(E)2ENRE
Inter-fund Transfer 51,000 (3,682,100) - (400,363) (307,150) (4,338,613)
HEEFR
Balance as at 30.6.2019 213,184,939 171,609,451 - 602,471,740 171,107,330 1,158,373,460
FEER
Balance as at 1.7.2019 213,184,939 171,609,451 - 602,471,740 171,107,330 1,158,373,460
AEER
Transfer from/(to) (43,773,945) 73,454,906 59,779,868 41,840,993 56,479,780 187,781,602
Statement of
Comprehensive
Income
B/ E)2HEINER
Inter-fund Transfer 15,806,311 (71,492,634) (51,038,900) (7,626,922)  (3,711,278) (118,063,423)
E&EK
Balance as at 30.6.2020 185,217,305 173,571,723 8,740,968 636,685,811 223,875,832 1,228,091,639
HEER

As at 30 June 2020, the total balance of UGC Funds
derived from General and Development Reserve
Fund, Unallocated Matching Grants and Unallocated
Research Matching Grants was HK$367.5 million
(2019: HK$384.8 million).

As at 30 June 2020, the total balance of Other
Reserves derived from Operations Reserves and
Non-Designated Donations and Benefactions was
HK$860.6 million (2019: HK$773.6 million).
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P2020£6 B30  H—MERERE
EehRDPERZEEBHSAKZ
BESESRERRI. 6758 BT
(2019 : 3. 848f&HIT) -

ﬁA202o¢6ﬁ3oE| HEEFEBMIFEERR
BRI BB RS AR il EL At &R AR 4587 /8. 60612

T (2019 1 7. 736fEHTT) ©



14. Property, Plant and Equipment
RE -~ ik aEM
Buildings,
Structures & Leasehold
Fittings Improvements Construction- Furniture &
REBER FHES&E in-Progress Equipment Total

ElE EE BRI EEIRE ZERZM #ast

HK$ &7t HK$ Bt HK$ #Eit HKS$ &It HKS$ #iT
Cost pias
At 1 July 2019 52201957 A1 H 1,635,736,879 322,786,887 26,830,847 156,773,317 2,142,127,930
Additions fEE 8,309,601 13,908,029 39,157,378 19,716,748 81,091,756
Disposals & (20,871,315) - - (21,054,960) (41,926,275)
Transfers 8843 36,658,964 - (36,658,964) - -
At 30 June 2020 54202056 530H 1,659,834,129 336,694,916 29,329,261 155,435,105 2,181,293,411
Accumulated Depreciation R}
At 1 July 2019 52201957 A1 H 534,762,281 275,295,431 - 143,004,481 953,062,193
Depreciation Provided 36,823,847 21,794,772 - 14,606,812 73,225,431

during the Year
AEREHERITE
Disposals & (9,803,748) - - (21,054,960) (30,858,708)
At 30 June 2020 #%20205F6 530H 561,782,380 297,090,203 - 136,556,333 995,428,916
Cost A&
At 1 July 2018 $%2018ZF7 H1H 1,618,874,781 309,366,073 22,848,606 150,946,678 2,102,036,138
Additions fEE 8,006,598 13,420,814 13,171,241 8,597,413 43,196,066
Disposals & (333,500) - - (2,770,774) (3,104,274)
Transfers #5143 9,189,000 - (9,189,000) - -
At 30 June 2019 #%20195F6 530H 1,635,736,879 322,786,887 26,830,847 156,773,317 2,142,127,930
Accumulated Depreciation ERITE
At 1 July 2018 420185781 H 499,740,134 255,073,729 - 132,576,560 887,390,423
Depreciation Provided 35,155,547 20,221,702 - 13,198,695 68,575,944
during the Year

AEANFHRITE
Disposals & (133,400) - - (2,770,774) (2,904,174)
At 30 June 2019 $2201956 H30H 534,762,281 275,295,431 - 143,004,481 953,062,193
At 30 June 2020 $42020F6H30H 1,098,051,749 39,604,713 29,329,261 18,878,772 1,185,864,495
At 30 June 2019 54201956 H30H 1,100,974,598 47,491,456 26,830,847 13,768,836 1,189,065,737
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15. Leases

HE

The Lingnan Institute of Further Education of the
University holds a lease in respect of an education
centre for hosting its programmes. The term of
the lease was two years without extension option.
The lease consists of a fixed monthly payment
throughout the lease term and a variable payment in
accordance with the actual number of classrooms
and hours consumed by the University.

(a) Right-of-use Assets

The carrying amounts of the University’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

As at 1 July 2019
Lease Modification

Depreciation

As at 30 June 2020

58

ERMAEFEEESERAEERREFE—
HRERLEY  HEHMAWME  BEHEE
- REBONBEERD  KRBAETEEHE
PABAXN —BESBMMAEE - THFEH
DRARBRBERERNBZHENF K
A e

(a) ERAEEE

REE EHEEECKOSBELEEZE)
A

Education Centre

and Total
BRI ORIEET
HKS$ #JT
$82019F781H 348,492
HEEE 637,146
e (321,018)
$22020F6 H30H 664,620



15. Leases (continued)

HE (/&)

(b) Lease Liabilities

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 July 2019
Lease Modification
Accretion of Interest recognized during the year

Payments
As at 30 June 2020
Analysed into:

Current Portion

Non-current Portion

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 36.

(b) HERME

AEE HEEBZROSBREES

e

#220195F781H
HERE
AR B R
SE

58202056 H30H
Dk

MENERD
FERENER 15

HE&EEH A DHTIIRHIEESE -

2020
HK$ &7t
348,492
637,146
4,443
(324,000)

666,081

317,589

348,492
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15. Leases (continued)

HE (&)

(c) Amounts recognized in Income and Expenditure

in relation to Leases

Interest Expense in respect of Lease Liabilities

Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets

Variable Lease Payments not included in the Measurement
of Lease Liabilities (included in Expenditure)

Total Amount recognized in Income and Expenditure

(d) Variable Lease Payments

The University’s variable and fixed lease payments
are set out below:

As at 30 June 2020
2202056 H30H

Fixed Payments
Variable Payments

60

(c) A EFERR U RZ TR

2020
HK$ EJT
HEEEpEmA S H 4,443
FHEEEZIE 321,018
RETEHEEEREEEEN 607,550
AEHENTHR (BE5RIZHEA)
NI R EE5E 933,011
(d) FTEFENIR
REWIENEEEENRIRT AT :
2020
HKS$ &7t
Il NES 324,000
FENMTER 607,550
931,550



16. Investments

"E

Equity Investments Designated
at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Unlisted Equity Investments

Financial Assets at Fair Value

through Profit or Loss

Listed Equity Investments in Hong Kong

Listed Investment Funds
Unlisted Investment Funds

Notes
FEE

EERUAREEA
EENRRER

®E

FEHERRE

DA ffBER A=

HWEMEE

EHERRE TR
EHEERE
FFEMEERE

The fair value hierarchy of the financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period is presented in

Note 37.

2020 2019
HK$ &t HK$ &It
6,865,845 6,552,069
6,865,845 6,552,069

21,178,806 28,986,538
27,745,760 89,753,220

398,411,186 735,528,386

447,335,752 854,268,144

454,201,597 860,820,213

REXGEEANER T AENAREEDRF

SR HIEES7 ©
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17.  Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

AR ~ RiTERREES

Accounts Receivable FEUBR TR

Other Receivables HithEURBRFX
Prepayments FEfTERTX
Rental and Sundry Deposits HERHIGES
Less: Non-current Portion W IERENER (D
Current Portion TRENEB1D

Accounts receivable and other receivables are net of
loss allowance. The ageing analysis of the accounts
receivable at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

Current REIEB

Less than One Month Past Due EERER—E A

One to Three Months Past Due BH—EAZE=ERA

More than Three Months but not BHEMR=BERETE
more than One Year Past Due n—F

More than One Year Past Due BEARIR—&F

Loss allowance recognized in respect of accounts
receivable is as follows:

Balance as at 30 June 6 B30 H#LER

62

2020 2019
HKS$ &It HKS$ &It
9,373,159 6,572,564
546,555 729,380
14,086,977 14,027,286
747,504 752,304
24,754,195 22,081,534
(1,229,087) (2,486,375)
23,525,108 19,595,159

FEWR & B At FEWIR R E IR 1E B s -
R EE BB BERKAIERIR D HTZ T

2020 2019

HKS$ &t HK$ AT
6,719,776 5,526,034
986,689 622,845
23,898 91,285
1,307,642 173,280
335,154 159,120
9,373,159 6,572,564

YR EEBRIREERBUT ¢

2020 2019
HK$ &t HKS$ &It
3,087,184 3,987,184




17.  Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (continued)

EERTR ~ REARMREIZEE (18)

An impairment analysis is performed at each Rk AR EETRES T EE
reporting date using a provision matrix to measure FEEIEAE L - BEXDERLUIRE 2 AW
expected credit losses. The provision rates are HUIRPHIEBELITE - ZETERMIAEN
based on days past due for groupings of various BER - EBFEANBRERBAUSNERR
customer segments with similar loss patterns FEE - BRI MERRZEENSETER -
(i.e. by service type). The calculation reflects the — RS P EWERSRINmEEBE —FEMANE
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of SIEEIR4] » REBeEETLUN -

money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, the University
would consider to write off the accounts receivable
if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

The information below is about the credit risk KABEBEEGTENERRANGEERRE
exposure on the accounts receivable using a KIRFZN T
provision matrix:

As at 30 June 2020 7202046 830H

Past Due iBHH

More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than 1 Year Over 1
Current Month 1to3Months ER=EHR{ER Year Total
REIER BER—EA —ERE=EA ER—% ERW—%F #aEt
Expected Credit 0% 0% 0% 0% 92% 30%
Loss Rate
FRHAEFBR R
Gross Carrying 6,719,776 986,689 23,898 1,307,642 4,322,338 13,360,343
Amount (HK$)
BREHR{E (FEIT)
Expected Credit - - - - 3,987,184 3,987,184
Losses (HK$)
FEHAE R (BT)
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17.  Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (continued)

R - RAERREEE (&)

As at 30 June 2019

7201946 A30H

Past Due iBEH

More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than 1 Year Over 1
Current Month 1to3Months ER=EBEFR Year Total
REIER BER—ER —EAE=EA ER—% KRR % #aEt
Expected Credit 0% 0% 0% 0% 96% 38%
Loss Rate
FRHBE B R
Gross Carrying 5,526,034 622,845 91,285 173,280 4,146,304 10,559,748
Amount (HK$)
ARERE (Br)
Expected Credit - - - - 3,987,184 3,987,184
Losses (HK$)
TEHAZ 1B (BTT)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented
rental deposits, utility deposits and sundry debtors.
Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default of comparable companies with
published credit ratings. As at 30 June 2020, the
University assessed the impact of loss allowance
for impairment of deposits and other receivables
was insignificant.

None of the above deposits and other receivables is

either past due or impaired and there was no recent
history of default.
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BReEMEMBYHIREREHEERS  KE
ERERHEREZA - WER > AI2ZER
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18. Time Deposits and Cash and Cash Equivalents
THEMRERERREFEY

(@) Time Deposits

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but
less than One Year

Classified as Current Assets

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of less than Three Months
Classified as Current Assets-
Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Note 18 (b))

Total

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of less than Three Months (Note 18 (a))

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) EEAFRX

REFAE R =R
BREit—FEHER
N kRRENE E

FREIFIB%EMR=@EB
RIEHITERR
JERENEE-RER
HE&FEM(MEE18(b))

MaT

(b) RERIFEEEY

REIEAE MR =EA
RITE BRTF=A(BEEE18(a))

W& K IRITHEER

ReRMEFEY

2020 2019
HK$ &t HKS$ &t
1,020,031,677 641,524,412
378,535,483 65,132,922
1,398,567,160 706,657,334
378,535,483 65,132,922
9,716,682 6,944,119
388,252,165 72,077,041
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19. Accounts Payable and Accruals

iR TARE R

Accounts Payable FEATERTR
Accruals and Provisions TRIRE R KR
Retentions Payable FEfTHOIR &

and Deposits Received REWERE
Contract Liabilities (Note 19 (a)) SRR AEIEE19(a))
Amount Due to UGC HRHEE
Note 19 (a) FftzE19(a)
Contract Liabilities GHRIE

Tuition Fees 88

Hostel Fees BE

Graduation Deposits FEHBIRE

Other Course Fees Hitn:R2EH

Contract liabilities include tuition fees, hostel fees,
graduation deposit and other course fees received
in advance from students. The decrease in contract
liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the decrease in
short-term advances received from students at the
end of the year in relation to the tuition fees. The
increase in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly
due to the increase in short-term advances received
from students at the end of the year in relation to the
tuition fees.
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2020 2019

HK$ &t HK$ &t
13,928,067 16,165,175
42,094,300 25,735,883
17,609,832 15,983,565
53,132,146 59,830,809
41,824,645 36,769,193
168,588,990 154,484,625

As at1 July 2018

2020 2019  F2018%781H

HKS$ 7T HKS$ 7T HKS$ &7
48,437,227 54,210,308 48,858,180
1,383,750 2,489,397 2,169,965
2,923,300 2,965,500 2,792,920
387,869 165,604 321,548
53,132,146 59,830,809 54,142,613
AHABEBETEREANEE B8 « 2%
HEBRSREMBRER - 2000EMEHNE
BEROTEERNERBECEHBKREE

IR » 2019 F B EERINIERH
RERBEZERTAWBE IR



20 . Provision for Employee Benefits

{E & na 2 s

Staff Costs:

Salaries and Wages

Gratuities

Other Employee Benefits

Retirement Benefit
Scheme Contributions

Payable:
Within One Year
After One Year

21. Lloan - Secured

& - 5ER

As at 30 June 2020, the outstanding Loan balance

would be repayable as follows:

Repayable:
Within One Year

More than One Year, but not
exceeding Two Years

More than Two Years, but not
exceeding Five Years

After Five Years

BB
FERIE
HO T &=

H g S g+

RIRTEFFTEIHRR

FEAF HARR -
—%AN
—FLE

EAH
—FAN

—FEWEAR

MEEAFAR

AFELHE

2020 2019
HK$ &t HKS$ &7t
26,868,964 30,424,085
40,995,439 42,773,343
208,313 206,963
38,621 191,787
68,111,337 73,596,178
57,173,575 63,535,464
10,937,762 10,060,714
68,111,337 73,596,178

PR2020E6 530 © REEMW

ERENROT

2020 2019

HK$ T HK$ &t
- 6,857,834

- 6,857,834
20,573,502 20,573,492
6,857,824 -
27,431,326 27,431,326
27,431,326 34,289,160
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21. Loan - Secured (continued)

B - BER (8)

For the purpose of constructing a permanent
premises for the Community College for the
provision of self-financed sub-degree programmes,
the University obtained an interest free loan of
HK$205.7 million (“the Loan”), repayable in 10 equal
annual instalments, from the Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“the Lender”) in 2002. In September
2009, the repayment period of the Loan was
extended to 20 years. Pursuant to the extension, the
first 10 years remained interest free, and thereafter,
a “no-gain-no-loss” (“NGNL”) interest rate to be
determined by the Lender annually will be charged
on the outstanding Loan amount. The NGNL interest
rate for 2020 was ranged from 1.106% to 1.231%
(2019: 1.132% to 1.257%) per annum.

In consideration of the Loan, all incomes generated
from the courses for which the Loan was granted
have been charged to the Lender by way of a first
fixed charge. As a further security to the Loan, by
way of a first floating charge, all assets and rights,
both present and future, of the University have been
assigned to the Lender.

In April 2020, the University accepted the lender’s
offer of an interest free deferral of loan repayment for
two years, under which, the original due date of the
17th instalment will be postponed from 2 April 2021
to 2 April 2023. As a result, no amount is repayable
within two years.

As at 30 June 2020, the outstanding Loan balance

amounted to HK$27.4 million (2019 : HK$34.3
million).
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ETEEHEERMXKARKRES KA
mMEBELTEBENN THNEEREBZRRE
REBR2002E R G HAILEEE
(“BZA”) ME2.057BEBTHEEER
(“BZ”) > DI10EFHEHIE - PN 200949
B ZEFRMERPIERE20ME - BFUAK
E# BI0EKRARE  HE BEZER
mm o REAXNAE  FXESERER
AR TARBEARE L WRBIRE © 120204
ZTARBAE ) NARNRERT. 106%E
1. 231%2 & (2019 © 1. 132%Z& 1. 257%) °

RYDBER  RBALEZXKAREAE
BURENMBWA - UE—BEEERTH
ERBERA 1o - REFMBEAEMRK
MEELRER  BHLUE—FEIEF P NEH
WERA -

R20206F4H » REZERTERARENR
BREMMERRLEE  REZ R 8178
MERBASH2021F4H2AFHEZ20234F
4RA28 - At - REEMFAEFTEZEM
FRIH ©

7202086830 » REEMNERAE2, 7408
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23. Deferred Capital Fund

Balance as at 1.7.2018
#LER

Capital Fund Earned
(Note 22)
RENEAES
(M=t 22)
Capital Fund Released

Balance as at 30.6.2019
#hER

Balance as at 1.7.2019
#EER

Capital Fund Earned
(Note 22)
REVEAED
(Br=E 22)
Capital Fund Released

Balance as at 30.6.2020
#EER

70

Capital
Grants and
Earmarked AA & | Block
Grants Allocation Campus
BERE HiEpgE  Development
Block e INE#ER Donations
Grants Others METRE KREBR Total
BRwEh e Hit BREER EEN st
HKS$ &t HK$ #&JT HKS$ &7t HKS$ &t HK$ &t
37,487,283 58,799 606,915,363 180,750,577 825,212,022
15,804,172 - 25,654,303 - 41,458,475
(15,419,665) (19,600) (34,127,229) (6,023,541) (55,590,035)
37,871,790 39,199 598,442,437 174,727,036 811,080,462
37,871,790 39,199 598,442,437 174,727,036 811,080,462
23,673,065 110,280 46,793,110 - 70,576,455
(17,173,697) (44,453)  (44,906,436) (7,862,391) (69,986,977)
44,371,158 105,026 600,329,111 166,864,645 811,669,940




24. Remuneration of the Higher Paid Staff

RS A=E D)
The numbers of the higher paid staff falling in the DR TR EESEH AR BN S 3
following bands of annual equivalent remuneration BB ABA:
were:

HK$ T 2020 2019
1,800,001 - 1,950,000 16 11
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 19 21
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 9 7
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 - 3
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 5 3
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 1 1
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 - 2
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 3 1
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 1 -

3,150,001 - 3,300,000 - -
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 - -

3,450,001 - 3,600,000 1 -
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 - 1
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 1 -

3,900,001 - 4,050,000 - -
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 - -
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 - -
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 - -
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 - -
4,650,001 - 4,800,000 - -
4,800,001 - 4,950,000 - -
4,950,001 - 5,100,000 - -
5,100,001 - 5,250,000 - -

5,250,001 - 5,400,000 - 1
5,400,001 - 5,550,000 - -
5,550,001 - 5,700,000 1 -

57 51
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25. Matching Grants and Matched Donations Movement Analysis

Ao fHBh & & S EEC RS E DR

2020 2019
UGC-funded Operations UGC-funded Operations
BETEHEE BETEHEE
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
EfiebE CEENBER ENWbE CSERHEER
HKS$ &t HKS$ &t HKS$ &7t HK$ &t
Balance as at 1 July 781 B#5es 212,952,173 183,840,465 216,629,968 182,899,268
Income A
Donations/Grants BF/E e 72,847,430 85,694,861 - -
Interest and Investment FERBRERA 2,067,194 4,193,859 749,024 4,057,324
Income 287,866,797 273,729,185 217,378,992 186,956,592
Expenditure T H
Teaching and Research BBRMEREFA 1,755,877 7,031,765 41,820 192,726
Enhancement
Internationalization and b RBER 258,000 (5,000) 189,058 112,400
Student Exchange JEEN
Activities
Scholarships & Prizes RBE RIS 5,825,870 7,729,926 3,778,100 1,804,517
Bursaries B2 - 320,866 - 386,186
Student Development BARE 6,643 1,365,807 416,868 459,973
Others HAth 78,128 345,123 973 160,325
7,924,518 16,788,487 4,426,819 3,116,127
Balance as at 30 June 6 B30 BiLER 279,942,279 256,940,698 212,952,173 183,840,465
(Note) (BEEE)

Note: No donation, that could be matched, was received for
self-financing operations since the extension of the Matching
Grant Scheme to non-UGC-funded activities in August 2012.
As the UGC-funded operations of the University were at
degree or above level, no expenditures were incurred for the
activities of sub-degree level. The balance has not included the
accumulated net unrealized loss on investments of HK$0.46
accumulated unrealized gain HK$13.25

million (2018/19 :

million) as it is not a free balance at the disposal of the

University.
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EEEE - KRB RBWEEAMEEEEFHA
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26. Research Matching Grants and Matched Donations/Research Grants/
Research Contracts Movement Analysis

MAREEEE & R S BE IR/ MR M /MR SHER 2

Balance as at 1 July 2019

Income
Donations/Research Grants
Research Contracts Received

Interest Income

Expenditure
Research Project(s)
Research Equipment
Research Activities for Students
Others

Balance as at 30 June 2020

2020
UGC-funded Operations
BREESEEE

Matched Donations /

Research Research Grants /
Matching Research Contracts
Grants 2 AL ¥ AR/
g MREHEHE/MEER
HK$ #JT HK$ #JT
201947 B1 BH#&ER - -

WA
BIRMEEEI2 /R 59,570,605 69,141,210

= SN

F BUTA 607,338 496,745
60,177,943 69,637,955

T H
HMRIAE 2,609,218 10,714,507
ey ] 2,140 78,270
B RRIEED - 169,991
HAth 384,107 335,303
2,995,465 11,298,071

202056 A30 BiLeR

Note: No donation / research grant / research contract, that
could be matched, was received for self-financing operation

during the year.

57,182,478

58,339,884

e RAFE > RBIAGBWEERRBESEF

HAYA RN

/FERBIE/ R EH -
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27. Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (“the Scheme”)

B B4 tthBeERt St B WIS ( "518)7 )

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Scheme. In accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Scheme, the details of the
matching grants, matched donations of the Scheme
and their related expenditure are summarized as
follows:

REEBEITFHEINAR GRS - mRETEIAVIEK
BER RE#EBE  CERYBRANEMN
B IR

2020 2019
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
EEEEhE CEERHIEBR EEEEE CEREEIR
HKS$ &It HKS$ &7t HKS$ &7t HKS$ &7t
Balance as at 1 July 7 B1 Bi&ER 63,226 - 210,688 -
Amount received =1 IVEIRE]
Interest/Investment FEAREWRA 1,284 - 3,146 -
Income
1,284 - 3,146 -
Expenditure > H
Programme Costs SEENRRA 9,300 - 150,608 -
9,300 - 150,608 -
Balance as at 30 June 6 B30 Hi&eR 55,210 - 63,226 -
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28. Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)
B FBAIBIRERETE (“"EBETE" )

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the income and expenditure of the
Subsidy Scheme are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2018 20187 B1 HiLeR

Net Amount Received/
(Refunded)

Balance as at 1 July 2019

Net Amount Received/
(Refunded)

EWUGRE)FFIR

Grants Received SUEs £
Grants Refunded REEENE
Interest/Investment Income FEAREWA
Expenditure S
Programme Costs SEENRA
Balance as at 30 June 2019 201956 30 B#5ER

201947 B1 B#&eR

EW/(RE]) 7R

Grants Received SUfEEI £
Grants Refunded REEENE
Interest/Investment Income FEAREWRA
Expenditure ZH
Programme Costs SEENRL A
Balance as at 30 June 2020 2020 %6 B30 B#5ER

REBCEITEBEINMERGE - mRED
FTEINIKBEER  HWEF S ZWARZH
WAL T

Lingnan

Community Institute

College at of Further

Lingnan Education

Lingnan University SEE R
University EEKE HiEEE Total
EPAS it [ 2P ol #aEt
HK$ #JT HK$ &t HK$ T HK$ &
1,566,919 203,087 1,771,080
3,541,944 - 151,798 3,693,742
(1,149,663) 4) (205,880) (1,356,617)
33,744 - 6,865 40,609
2,426,025 ) (47,217) 2,377,734
2,070,400 46,445 2,116,845
2,070,400 46,445 2,116,845
1,922,544 109,425 2,031,969
1,922,544 109,425 2,031,969
2,447,085 200,000 2,647,085
(1,301,700) (113,915)  (1,415,615)
34,206 4,347 38,553
1,179,591 90,432 1,270,023
1,818,250 (4,125) 1,814,125
1,818,250 (4,125) 1,814,125
1,283,885 203,982 1,487,867
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29. Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for
Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

REABEEELEYE T-8B—0&, XREBETE ( “BBETE" )
The University has complied with all the requirements REBCEITEFENABEGRYE - ZRER
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the TR EE R - EF S BMARZE
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme, the WA -
details of the income and expenditure of the Subsidy
Scheme are summarized as follows:
Community Lingnan
College at Institute
Lingnan of Further
Lingnan University Education
University E={EapNE HEAB Total
e N TTESER FEEESER FEH
HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HKS$ &It HK$ #it
Balance as at 1 July 2018 20187 A1 BitEs 114,976 1,074 104,179 220,229
Net Amount Received/(Refunded) EU/GRE])FFIE
Grants Received S eI & 419,384 - 200,000 619,384
Grants Refunded REEENE (16,181) (1,074) (106,688) (123,943)
Interest/Investment Income FMEMREWA 1,923 - 5,766 7,689
405,126 (1,074) 99,078 503,130
Expenditure Eogan!
Programme Costs TRENRR A 458,440 - 40,190 498,630
458,440 - 40,190 498,630
Balance as at 30 June 2019 201956 530 H#5eH 61,662 - 163,067 224,729
Balance as at 1 July 2019 2019457 A1 Bitas 61,662 - 163,067 224,729
Net Amount Received/ BUW/GER)FFRIE
(Refunded)
Grants Received SR & 820,513 - 200,000 1,020,513
Grants Refunded REFEEE (1,890) - (164,629) (166,519)
Interest/Investment Income FMEMREWA 10,867 - 4,964 15,831
829,490 - 40,335 869,825
Expenditure Eogan!
Programme Costs SEENRRA 236,509 - (1,025) 235,484
236,509 - (1,025) 235,484
Balance as at 30 June 2020 202056 30 B#&ER 654,643 - 204,427 859,070
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30. Non-Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for
Post-secondary Students (”the Subsidy Scheme”)

RABEETE B4 T—8—I%, IREETE ( “EBIEtE" )
The University has complied with all the requirements REBERBRITEBFSINME KRG - REBER
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the STEIMEEER  LEBETE A RZ H
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme, WA T -

the details of the income and expenditure of the
Subsidy Scheme are summarized as follows:

Lingnan Institute of

Lingnan Further Education
University sEr K Total
S AR FEEIE2Mk fast
HK$ #&iT HK$ T HK$ &t
Balance as at 1 July 2019 201957 B1 HitEr - - -
Net Amount Received/(Refunded) EW/GRE)FFRIE
Grants Received i E 567,328 200,000 767,328
Interest/Investment Income FEAZEWA 3,949 3,001 6,950
571,277 203,001 774,278
Expenditure X H
Programme Costs TERENRR A 322,050 - 322,050
322,050 - 322,050

Balance as at 30 June 2020 2020F6 30 B#56R 249,227 203,001 452,228
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31. Non-Means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

RAREEE LBENECEEE B

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the income and expenditure of the
Subsidy Scheme are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2019

Net Amount Received/(Refunded)

Grants Received

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure
Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2020

78

201957 B1 Hikes
BU/GRE)FFIE
B EEh £

FBREWA

]
EENRRA

202046 B30 AiLEs

sT8l ( "&BhEtaE” )

REEBTENEINATEGRME - IRRERD
STEIRIREE R R » L EBIAH B2 A K3
BB

Lingnan
University
EmAR
HK$ T

212,466
2,202

214,668

100,050

100,050

114,618

Lingnan Institute of
Further Education

#HEAR Total
BB st
HK$ &t HK$ #E7T
75,000 287,466

1,572 3,774

76,572 291,240

- 100,050

- 100,050

76,572 191,190




32. Note to the Statement of Cash Flows

iﬁﬁ/]lhi%l‘ﬁ-ni

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities:

At 1 July 2019
(as originally reported)
Effect of Adoption of HKFRS
16 (Note 2.2)

At 1 July 2019 (restated)

Changes from Financing
Cash Flows
Repayment of Loan
Interest Expense
Portion of Lease Payment
Lease Modification
Interest Paid

Other Changes
Interest Expense
Interest paid classified as

Operating Cash Flows

Changes from Operating Cash Flows

At 30 June 2020

201957 A1 B#&eR
(GBIERR)
RNEBUBRE

ZRIE16RITE

201947 A1 B#&eR
(EH#mEH)

MERLRENEEH
EEEM
R
BAHEEAK
HEEE
BT

M i

E {8
FE %

JIAEERERERN

At

BEREMEBNEE

2020 %6 30 B#5ER

(a) HAEFBMELNEE IHIK

Accounts

Payable and

Lease Accruals

Loan-Secured Liabilities EARERRE
ER-FHEA HEEE FREH
HKS$ &7t HK$ &7t HK$ T
34,289,160 - 154,484,625

- 348,492 -
34,289,160 348,492 154,484,625
(6,857,834) - -
- 4,443 -

- (319,557) -

- 637,146 -

- - (410,017)

- - 303,006

- (4,443) -

- - 14,211,376
27,431,326 666,081 168,588,990

2019/20 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT e #1#53%RE 79



32. Note to the Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HERERMEE ()

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued) :

At 1 July 2018

Changes from Financing
Cash Flows
Repayment of Loan
Interest Paid

Other Changes
Interest Expense
Changes from Operating Cash
Flows
At 30 June 2019

(b) Total Cash Outflow for Leases:

201847 A1 Hi&ER

B IRSTENEE
EE2E™;
FEZM
H )
FIEZH
EERSTENER
201946 A30 AiLEs

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within Operating Activites

Within Financing Activites

80

EERE

B EE

(a) HAEFBMELNEEIHIKR (B)

Accounts

Payable and

Lease Accruals

Loan-Secured Liabilities TR E
ER-FHEH HERRE FRIRER
HKS &t HKS &t HK$ &t
41,146,994 - 151,893,364
(6,857,834) - -
- - (490,139)

- - 480,704

- - 2,600,696
34,289,160 - 154,484,625

(b) HEMNBRESRE :

HEMBRSREFARSAERUT ¢

2020
HKS$ &7t

611,993

319,557

931,550



33. Lease Commitments as at 30 June 2019
20196 H30H 2B & %5

As at 30 June 2019, the University had future 201946 830 » ARERBEHZED
minimum lease commitments in respect of the MEFIMARIHEHKEHEE  MART
teaching centre under non-cancellable operating FIEEEI TR EE AR

leases which fall due as follows :

2019
HK$ #&JT
Within One Year HR—FR 324,000
In the Second to Fifth Years, Inclusive RrREBRERAFERN 27,000
(BIEEERSE)
351,000
Lease was negotiated for term of two years and the MEHAMSE @ BHRESEE -
rentals were fixed within the term.
Upon adoption of HKFRS16, the present value KB B BREENEI6HE - AENLE
of future minimum lease payments, which are no XA EAREEAEMEURREERE
longer disclosed as commitments as shown above, NHRNREERHEREEESMIEE5 -
is recognized as right-of-use assets in note 15.
34. Capital Commitments
BARAIE
2020 2019
HK$ #&iT HK$ &t
Works contracted, but not completed TREENBEXRET 45,740,000 62,339,000
The capital commitments represent the estimated FAEDREEENEMBEEBLANET
remaining balance of the contract sum for the works BREEBFRBREEARARAZERT DT
of the capital and AA&I projects not yet certified BEEKIRE -

completed at the end of the reporting period.
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35. Financial Instruments by Category
EMIT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets

EHMEE

Financial Assets

RexEER SRR ITAEMNKEE
LU

202056 A30H

Financial Assets

at Fair Value at Fair Value Financial
through Profitor  through Other Assets at
Loss - Held for Comprehensive Amortized
Trading Income Cost
LUARBESA UAREBEETA  LEHERE
WERWER ZEBERZ HEZEM Total
EE-FFEE EREE =13 #aEt
HKS$ &7t HK$ #EJT HKS &t HK$ &t
Equity Investments Designated 875 LI/ARE(E - 6,865,845 - 6,865,845
at Fair Value through Other STAZEWRESE
Comprehensive Income ZRERRE
Financial Assets at Fair Value  LIARE{EET AW 447,335,752 - - 447,335,752

through Profit or Loss TROEMEE

Financial Assets included in ST AFEULBREY ~ FE -
Accounts Receivable, TERFI IR S/
Prepayments and Deposits EREE

Time Deposits with Original FEIERERMA=E -
Maturity of more than Three BEREMR—E/
Months but less than One EHITERR
Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents H&RIREEED -

10,667,218 10,667,218

- 1,020,031,677 1,020,031,677

388,252,165 388,252,165

447,335,752

6,865,845 1,418,951,060 1,873,152,657
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35. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)
EMITAESE (8)

As at 30 June 2020 1202046 530H

Financial Liabilities

Ea AR

Secured Loan BIEHER

Lease Liabilities HEAE

Financial Liabilities included in ST AT IR TELR
Accounts Payable and Accruals ERMNERMEE

Financial Liabilities at
Amortized Cost
DSk At 22
ERERE

HK$ &t

27,431,326
666,081
115,456,844

143,554,251
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35.
EMITESE ()
As at 30 June 2019

Financial Assets

EMEE

Equity Investments
Designated at Fair Value
through Other
Comprehensive Income

Financial Assets at Fair
Value through Profit or
Loss

Financial Assets included in
Accounts Receivable,
Prepayments and

Deposits

Time Deposits with Original
Maturity of more than
Three Months but less

than One Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

8y

EERLIASEE
FTAZENWEE
ZEDRE

DlaseiEEat Al
XRNEMEE

ETAFEULERSR ~ FAMS
R RIZ S ER
BE

EEBA RN
FHBsEH—Eh
EHRTER

RERBFE2FEY

Financial Assets

Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

7201946 A30H

Financial Assets

at Fair Value at Fair Value Financial
through Profit or through Other Assets at
Loss - Held for Comprehensive Amortized
Trading Income Cost
DARBESA UAREBEEA LA $5 Pl A

WERHER ZEBSERZ SEZER Total

BE-FIEEE THEE BE #ast

HK$ #T HK$ &7t HK$ #T HK$ #JT

- 6,552,069 - 6,552,069

854,268,144 - - 854,268,144

- - 8,054,248 8,054,248

- - 641,524,412 641,524,412

- - 72,077,041 72,077,041

854,268,144 6,552,069 721,655,701 1,582,475,914




35. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)
EMITAESHE (&)
As at 30 June 2019

Financial Liabilities

7201946 A30H

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

EREE LE#RASEZERMEE

HK$ &

Secured Loan BIEWEF 34,289,160

Financial Liabilities included in ST AT IR R TR 94,653,816
Accounts Payable and Accruals BRNSRER

128,942,976

36.
M#BEEEIEERERER

The University’s principal financial instruments
comprise secured loan, cash and time deposits, unit
trusts and equity investments. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
University’s operations. The University has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts
receivable and payable, which arise directly from
its operations. The University does not issue any
financial instruments and derivatives. In addition,
the University does not hold any derivatives.

The University is exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (including interest rate risk,
currency risk, and equity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk in the normal course of activities.
The Council reviewed and approved policies
for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below:

Market Risks
(i) Interest Rate Risk
The University’s exposure to the risk of changes

in market interest rate relates primarily to the
University’s time deposits in banks and secured

Financial Risk Management Obijectives and Policies

AREMNTEZSHIEABERERER ]
EREMER  BUGHESRERKE -
BLEHTANTIZERAERBRENEE
MEE - ARBEERHEHEELEE -
EMBENEERRETEREL  WEKEK
ENERRE - ARBARBITERAEHKIT
AT E - RILZ5  ARBARFHEEMT
£TH-

AREBREEBEPAMSANEIEZSHA
o StETBER (BREAXEE  S¥ER

REREERR)  FERRLREMRER -
REGR RO T BRI EE /2 & 18
[

hiE Lk

() FIFE Iz

ARBEHNTHAERCAREERAA
KRBT H AR R AR OB £ -
REBSRMHBERE « AEBER 74
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEREZERERBER (1)

loan from the Government. The deposits in banks
earned interests at fixed rates. Time deposits are
made for varying periods of between 7 days to 365
days depending on the cash flow requirements of the
University. The interest rate and terms of repayment
of the secured loan are disclosed in Note 21 to the
financial statements. The risk of changes in market
interest rates are not expected to have a significant
impact on the results of the University as the time
deposits are at fixed rates and other cash and bank
balances are kept in current account. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

Interest Rate Profile

The following table details the interest rates analysis
for evaluation of the interest rate risk:

NFELRE=BA+TOARZE - MBEERE
FTNFIREBEELNEHRAGER Y HRERME
2155 - AE B EHAREENREMRE
RBITHEBRERRERKS - RSB R
BICHNARENY B TAMRBEKRE
& AR ESRE DT -

RS o

TR REN KRR A

2019

Annual Effective
Interest Rate

Annual Effective
Interest Rate

BEFEERE EFREFE
% AR HK$ &t % BHE  HKS$ AT
Financial Assets ETHEE
Fixed Rate Financial BEMEEMEE
Assets
- Time Deposits with - EZREAR %R 0.10 to 2.40% 1,398,567,160 1.75 10 2.96% 706,657,334
Original Maturity of —FRNEEBER
less than One Year (HiEE18(a)) 1,398,567,160 706,657,334
(Note 18 (a)) - -
Financial Liabilities
No-gain-no-loss Rate £MEE
Financial Liabilites ~ FERATEFIZ
- Secured Loan SEhEE 1.106% t01.231% 27,431,326  1.132% t01.257% 34,289,160
(Note 21) - BIEHER
(fsE21) 27,431,326 34,289,160
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36.
MBEEEEBERBER (1)

Market Risks (continued)
(i) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The University’s currency risk arises mainly from
the accounts payable, receivable, time-deposits in
banks, equity investments and financial assets at
fair value denominated in foreign currencies. The
management conducted periodical review of the
currency risk exposure and would consider currency
hedging should the need arise.

Significant carrying amounts of the University’s
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at 30 June were analysed in the
table below:

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

mimEkE (&)
(ii) B /E b

R TAENARBEARKRNBESRERZ
SNEEXRBMKEEBMELENARINAE
R - ARBHNEEERREZRNINEE
¥ BUERS  RITEBRER - AREEE
nRENERMEE - EEE T HRAEFT A
HOERARREE  FERITEREEEEHR
5 e

REA30RAE » ARBERNINESREEN
BEANHTR

Financial Assets Financial Liabilities

EMEE gy =N
2020 2019 2020 2019
Currency &g HK$’ m HK$’ m HK$’ m HK$’ m
BEAETT BEATT BEAETT BEATT
United States Dollar E5T 11.0 11.1 1.0 0.8
11.0 111 1.0 0.8

Sensitivity analysis on fluctuation of foreign
currencies is not disclosed due to the HK-US
dollar peg and immaterial holding on other foreign
currencies, the Council anticipated that the
fluctuation in other foreign currencies will have
no material impact on the financial position of the
University.

MR BITEEITTHE - MEMIMNEEENE
BENFEEMY S STAMIIMNEERAK
BUAREMYBIRRNEERTE » A
FALE {5 EPE RIX BB E DT
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36. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and Policies (continued)

MBEMEEEBERER (1)

Market Risks (continued)
(iii) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of change
in equity market prices. The University is exposed
to equity price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities and unit trust fund, which represents
the potential loss of the investments the University
might suffer through holding market position in
the face of price movement. The Investment
Sub-committee performs periodic evaluation of the
investment portfolio in order to minimize the risk
associated with the investments whilst continuing
to follow the investment objectives.

As at 30 June 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10% in these investment’s
fair value, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the University’s surplus by
HK$44.7 million (2019: HK$85.4 million).

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation. The major
exposures to credit risk of the University’s financial
assets, which comprise accounts receivable, other
receivables, time deposits and cash and bank
balances, arise from default of the counterparty, with
the maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these financial assets at the end of the reporting
period. Time deposits and bank balances are placed
in various reputable financial institutions and there is
no concentration of credit risk. Accounts receivable
include amounts receivable from students, course-
collaborative partners, government agencies and
others. The majority of the students will settle the
fees payable when they become due or after the
receipt of the government grants, loans and/or

88

hiEmEE ()
(iii) FRAE(ETE R

CHTENAREEBERETZERE
MREFTEA N AR SR ERRE - AA2
FRENLHRBFLBAGRESS MEEE
KRR  AARERKBMSIBEEBE
RENEZESSEMFTEREMLAS  BE
RERRLMERERERR -

202056 H30H @ BEFENREAEE
1BBA10% 0 HMMREARE » KRREBNEHRHE
IR, 470838t (2019: 8, 5408
ABIT) e

EEHRkE

mem TEAER - AETEEMBA R
FUBEINEAR BHEERR - RE
REEERBRNARBSHMEE @ BREEBKK
M HEWER - EHER > UERERK
RITHEE - BRIDBANRRZHE FHERSIZ
MEXKEARZFERERNBEEEASHE
ENREEE TEHERNLBITERD
ERRZMBEEENSHEE  FEAR
WAKER - BRRABERE alRE
IREE ~ BT BRPI R EAMB A LRI - KREAD
BERSENRBERB - HUEIBTHED
& BN/ KRB ESHNENBRR
FERRED - AtMEBIRAEEZBEMIER
BEA - BUWERRERE D7 2% & & 3 4R 4
EEEERLUMRESERR -



36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEREEBERER (18)

Credit Risks (continued)

the University’s bursaries, credit risk of which is
minimal. Other receivables mainly include sundry
debtors. The ageing analysis of debtors is prepared
periodically for management review to minimize the
credit risk.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
University’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end
staging classification. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 30 June 2020

FEU B =R

Accounts Receivable*

Financial Assets Included in Other

Receivables, Prepayments and RSN EMERE
Deposits

- Normal*™* E&E™

- Doubtful** AR

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
R—EREEREFR

of more than Three Months but

less than One Year

Not Yet Past Due KiEHA
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERREFEY
Not Yet Past Due RiEHA

STAHAFEURERTR ~ TR

REEIERIK=ERERE

S & EE (%)

RAE R RFERIERESD

TRARBEERRZEABERARREER
R ZBRREEZREBBHER BRIFEHMBE
BHBRRENLERANE DA ER) MF
RERBDEAIBIE - FT2INSRRBT

BEEZIRERE -

1202046 530H
Lifetime ECLs
12-month ECLs ZHIEHEE
1288 T8 51
EERB Simplified
Stage 1 Approach
HKS &7T HKS$ &7t
- 9,373,159
1,294,059 -

1,020,031,677

388,252,165 -

Total
st

HK$ &It

9,373,159

1,294,059

- 1,020,031,677

388,252,165
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36.

Financial Risk Management Obijectives

MBEEEEBFEREER (1)

Credit Risks (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 30 June 2019

Accounts Receivable®

Financial Assets Included in Other
Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits
- Normal**

- Doubtful**

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but
less than One Year

Not Yet Past Due

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Not Yet Past Due

S0

FEUBRFR

T AEMAEUERTR ~ TR
BRMRZENEREE

g
R

FEEARMN=ERB%E
R—EREHFR

KA

ReERBFE2FEY
ESEEE

and Policies (continued)

EEAE @)

RARERERIERE S (48)

7201946 830H
Lifetime ECLs
12-month ECLs 2 HATEHAE S
12{@ B TEHA il
EEEE Simplified
Stage 1 Approach
[42:4) |kl
HK$ &7t HKS$ &7t
- 6,572,564
1,481,684 -
641,524,412 -
72,077,041 -

Total
et

HKS$ &It

6,572,564

1,481,684

641,524,412

72,077,041



36.
BEEEEEEERBER (1)
Credit Risk (continued)

For accounts receivable to which the University
applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in notes 17.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The University’s objective
is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through use of secured loan
for its operations and development. The University’s
investments are kept sufficiently liquid and the liquid
assets are maintained at a level which is considered
by the management to be adequate to meet the
needs of operations and the expected cash outflow
requirement. The liquidity of the University is closely
monitored by the Council on an ongoing basis.

The financial liabilities as at 30 June together with
the anticipated interest payments over the entire
repayment period of the Government Loan as
disclosed in Note 21 are analysed into relevant
maturity time bands based upon their contractual
maturity dates in the table below:

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

E8mkE ()

R MR B LR - B R
BN B I 1 T -

O EPARMBYGRIR  BERIARZEZE
MEENEEEREER 'EF ., BltE
TREERBI ML EENEAREEIDNS
ERENEERRBENEM - TR &
MEENEEERERS "Rk, -

TRED 1R B

TREEIHE  RECHESFEEBA
SIHMER  BIRRBRER - AREEEE
REHFESEEERELERBEFAEN
REBELER  MAEMERNEFE - X
RENKEEBEHREMN  EEEEEH
MBEEMNMERT KT MZKF e UENH
FEEBELURAEMNRESRAHENERE - RE
SR BERERARSNRESRE N -

RE6A30AME /M EEE LRIRM 21 P EE
MR EREREERATRA ST
IR ER BB 2T
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEEEEBFERER (18)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

e (%)

2020 2019

HKS 7T HK$ &7t

In less than One Year R —5 115,633,633 101,821,012

In more than One Year but not more than ER—SBENR-E 464,400 7,195,514
Two Years

In more than Two Years but not more than ER-FRER=F 7,188,225 7,118,306

Three Years

In more than Three Years but not more than ER=FEEHRIUE 7,111,551 7,026,674
Four Years

In more than Four Years but not more than ERNUFEEEHRASE 7,023,750 6,942,244
Five Years

In more than Five Years ERAE 6,947,893 -

144,369,452 130,103,750

37. Fair Value
NpfEE

As at 30 June 2020, the carrying amounts of
the University’s financial assets and liabilities
approximated to their fair values due to their short
term repayment nature, except for investments and
secured loan repayable after one year.

The fair value of the secured loan repayable after
one year has been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The University’s
own non-performance risk for the secured loan
repayable after one year as at 30 June 2020 was
assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amount
of the University’s secured loan repayable after one
year approximated to its fair value.

=P

BRIENREER —FREENERN
ARENSHEE,EBEBNEHERE S
B HIREEMN2020F6830HREEARE
ERiEPE

BERC—FREENERNANREERZ
REBBESMENE - A REHEERR
EERBMHK TR AMEINTE - 722020
FO6HIH  AREXRZERAETF I —FR
RENMETHNABITRRET GR/AERN -
AREBNBER e —FREEMNEFKREE
HENREERSE -



37.  Fair Value (continued)
AREE ()

Investments

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted price in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

r&E

DanEBEFESR T RARADEED B

DT :

F— HREEXNEERERTHRNZ®

Ego

B BRTB—RPTESHREZIIN
EENEECMNERTLER
s (BIREERITE) B -

(BT R E)

B BEREBBECBABEIIREMEED

BERAHES2E -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E_H F=H #EEt
HKS$ &t HKS$ &t HKS$ &t HK$ &7t
As at 30 June 2020 $#22020F6 H30H
Financial Assets at Fair Value HanEEFFANS
through Profit or Loss RNERMEE
- Listed Equity Investments - LRERRE 21,178,806 - - 21,178,806
- Listed Investment Funds - EESKRE 27,745,760 - - 27,745,760
- Unlisted Investment Funds -FEERESRE - 398,411,186 - 398,411,186
Equity Investments Designated  $EE &L ARIEE
at Fair Value through Other STAZENESR
Comprehensive Income ZHERIRE
- Unlisted Equity Investments - JELThIERIRE - - 6,865,845 6,865,845
48,924,566 398,411,186 6,865,845 454,201,597
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37.  Fair Value (continued)

neEE (])

Investments (continued) BE (8)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—k E#% E=MHR #EEt
HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HK$ &7t HK$ #iT
As at 30 June 2019 72201956 H30H
Financial Assets at Fair Value HAREERANSE
through Profit or Loss RNERMEE
- Listed Equity Investments - TR RE 28,986,538 - - 28,986,538
- Listed Investment Funds - FHESKE 89,753,220 - - 89,753,220
- Unlisted Investment Funds -JEETEESRE - 735,528,386 - 735,528,386
Equity Investments Designated  3§E&LAREE
at Fair Value through Other STAZENER
Comprehensive Income ZRERRE
- Unlisted Equity Investments - JE L TERIRE - - 6,552,069 6,552,069
118,739,758 735,528,386 6,552,069 860,820,213
There was no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 HARAAREBEIRGNE—R  BANE

and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the
reporting period.

The level 3 financial instrument includes the
investment in a limited partnership which is not
traded in active markets. Without an observable
market data, it is difficult to analyse a range of
significant unobservable input of the financial
instrument under Level 3 of which its fair value is
estimated on the basis of the investee’s financial
position and results as well as is determined by
using going concern asset-based as valuation
technique.

gy

=R TR SRR o

FoEFRERTETFNRIBERTZAE
EREAERE BREkESMTAREM
BhEER  HEANATHREHAENELE
LD EEAREBEAKBERKREATN

LRSS E S MR RV ST

ERMEERMMERE -



38.

Related Party Transactions

RAETS 3L

All transactions relating to purchases of goods
and services, capital projects as well as donations
involving organizations in which members of the
University’s Council may have an interest are
conducted during the normal course of business
and in accordance with the University’s financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures.

All members serve the University Council without
remuneration. Those members who are also
employees of the University received the aggregate
remunerations from their employment contracts as
follows:

Council Member Compensation KRESHREMHE
Salaries* et
Other Employee Benefits* Hthg BigF*

*

This sum has been included in the “Staff Costs
and Benefits” under the Expenditure heading
in Note 11.

Other than the employment contracts mentioned
above, the University has not entered into any
contract of significance for the provision of goods
and services with any Council member during the
year.

EED4bI:I
=N=H]

EIEERED N R# ~ 2ZEBERER
ﬁ’ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁi&;ﬁiﬁiaﬁfr/\iﬁﬂ
BRNEECR  HULEEXERBEFILE
BRERENGHERIY MEBERBREFET

FIERESEHRENERAERESHRESHM
WEEIFRE - —SLEREBGKERFHER
BHEES - MMIREEE S A FTUEAY R B
FEEEEVER

2020 2019
HK$ &t HKS$ &t
18,967,760 18,022,484
4,590,944 4,787,574
23,558,704 22,810,058

* EEREDHEIIAWEETN S S
BR AORRET -

BRY LAMEESRN  RERAFEARILR
BEAEMRES KB R E MR RNR
%%E’JEj‘DII\’\] °
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39. Comparative Figures

L&

Due to the reorganization of some expenditure in
certain categories, certain comparative amounts
have been restated and reclassified to conform with

the current year’s presentation.

Income and Expenditure Statement
Expenditure
Institutional Support
Premises and Related Expenses
Other Activities

40. Taxation
WwIE

sz 2

X H

HiEE
& KRB H
HAtEED

The University is an approved charitable institution
which is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax
under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance

(Cap. 112).

41. Approval of the Financial Statements

AR TR

The financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Council on 12 October

2020.

86

ARAETXHEEDE  REERHFES
MmN D8 > LI aAFEARAL -

2019 2019

HKS$ &7t HK$ #ET

(As restated EFiimHl) (As originally reported @7EEH¥R)
138,838,828 136,576,484
2,583,863 4,846,207

AREBD—Fi 2 BEHE  REBBHR
B (BBEBIH1125) EesRERRFTE
BiIH o

REGMN20200108 12H ROERIRER E A
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